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Mz. MURTHA. Do we have Dr. Bruce Wachholz?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. Yes, sir.

Mx. MURTHA. Dr. William Burr and L. Joe Deal, and Mr.

deYoung. Have a seat, Mr. deYoung.

Mr. deYoung, if you will introduce your colleagues.

Mr. DEYOUNG. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There are a

: 204.
number of items onp»pradiation survey,,medical program, ,other

aspects of resettlement of displaced people that will come

up this morning.

We have with us the acting Deputy High Commissioner for

the Trust Territory, Mr. Daniel High, who will address some

of the resettlement problems. He is accompanied by his

Budget Officer. There are some backup support witnesses for
te
~

the Department of Interior from the Department of Energy. we Ree

aAte. Dr. Burr, Dr. Wachhols, Mr. Deal and Mr. Gottlieb. they

will be addressing the problems specifically that relate to

radiation.

Mr. MURTHA. I understand that you have an opening

statement, is that correct?

Mr. DEYOUNG. We have no prepared opening statement. We

are prepared to answer any questions the committee would

like to put to us. .

Mr. MURTHA. Mr. deYoung, would you provide for the

committee an update of the radiological status of both

Bikini and Enewetak Atolls?  
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Mr. DEYOUNT.. thank you, fr. Chairman. Dr. Wachholz, of

the Department 24 Bnesgy. 25 prepared to present that on

behalf of the gavermment.

Dr. WACHHOIZ. mr. Chairman, X think the committee staff

has been provided witk copzes oF the latest documents that

are available te tine Hepartment at BerSY.AL 5ese. Ae RSSESSMEMT

The latest ex the Erewetak sicttuation is Bdocument, thts

partieriayQUcument;ZeseseEe Mets which you have, I

believe.

Was that provided te the cammittee?

Mr. DEYOUNE. Yes..

Dr. WACHHOIZ.. Bnd last fall. we provided to the people

of Bikini a #tetwe reprint of the zradtelogical seeret

status of Bikini Atoll. his was: a. follow-on of our earlier
OF ASINMPENATVRE REPORTIMG ON THE RAYOCOoICaL STRTUS OF Extwetrakc Aroub

book, for the Enewetak people.

In terms of the dese assessment for various living

patterns and cordi¢tiem: of both atolls, they are discussed

in hese: THESE DocumenTs. etre
£

Baste EY" THE Few rel
In terms oF tie bosdamwore daha, that is in tae book for

TOCE THER WiTmITS APVEN DICE §S.

the Enewetak AtojDy, ae tras wilt the followed by a similar

document from Lewremce Liwermore Natsaonal Laboratory in

Date, ALD

several months, qivinag the. completeassessment with respect

to BikiniArorc.

Mr. GOTTLIE3. For the recerd, would you identify them?

FINAL .
Dr. WACHHOIZ. TheEnewetat Baok that I am referring tois  



NAME:

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

30

91

92

94

95

96

97

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106  

HAP 133080 : PAGE 5

entitled ''Reassessment of the Potential Radiological Does

for Residents Resettling Enewetak Atoll,‘ and the two

previous documents to which I made reference are '' The

Meaning of Radiation at Bikini Atoll,"' and a-decumenin

**The Enewefag Atoll Today.''

Mr. MURTHA. We will keep a copy of those documents for

cur files. If you will review and summarize the conclusions

of those studies, please?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. The conclusions of these studies are based

solelyonradiation doses and do not takcubateues other

factors one might wish to include in any judgments regarding

the future of these atolls and the people.

The statements I will make are based on a comparison with

U.S. radiation exposure limits.

With respect to Enewetak, I think you will find that the

EsriMared ne
latest, dose numbers in thace final document are roughly about

“THE CUE wETAK ATOLL Jonny

10 to 20 percent higher than they were when we printedthre

document a year and a half or two years ago, because of the

greater data base which has become available since that

time.

Mr. MURTHA. So there is no increase in actual radiation,

there is only an increase in the accumulation of information

which--

Dr. WACHHOLZ. But that increase in information has led

to a recalculation.  
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Mr. MURTHA. I understand.

EsTrimnres Oos€§
Dr. WACHHOLZ. In which thedosages themselves are

roughly 10 to 20 percent higher.

Mr. MURTHA. And the bottom line. how do they compare

with areas that don’t have radiation?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. With respect to the southern islands at

Enewetak Atoll, they are well within U.S. exposure

standards. wWetiwbe-ew—l$—enpesuse-sciandesndos

iT 4S
With respect to the island of Enjebi, tteyp—ere above U.S.

exposure standards. Twith respect to Bikini Atoll, heze

tO Wire THE ISLAMDS
agerm: there is only one situationwhese—they are or could

be within U.S. exposure standards, and that would have a

number of restrictions associated with it, specifically for

the Island of Eneu.

Psoree KS
Thep, would have to reside solely on Eneu,; pproximately

50 percent of theiz diet would have to be from imported

foods, and there would have to be rather stséneenrt

restrictions w visiting wrth other islands of the atoll,

wit . . .

specifically Bikini Island, eel no food eaten from Bikini

Island.
Ew€e stand

With those four 3e-9345+-e+7eRn6- constraints.onecould fall

within the U.S. exposure standards.

Mx. MURTHA. Is this a final report? For instance, you

find 15, 20 percent higher radiation levels with new data.

L
Is it possible that you coud again have the same problem,  
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that more data would increase the amount on the atolls where

there is low radiation?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. In terms of the data base which is

SCsENWTISTS
currently available, our peepee in the laboratory believe

that they have the total data base for both Enewetak and

Bikini at this time.

This became complete roughly a year ago or thereabouts,

wiich led to the increase in the estimates at Enewetak. But

the Bikini numbers should be final. I have been assured of

that.

Mr. MURTHA. When will you survey the next time?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. Bikini? We~preobeartywortt—sueveysretthe

PADSPSY
erithe U.S. Government, would survey, per the provisions of
 

Public Law 96-205N,atfeast once every five years, minimum.

Mr. MURTHA. There is no need to survey the ones where

the radiation is below?
wiTp AFSOFCT TO

Dr. WACHHOLZ. ame southern islands of Enewetak, we

really don't see any need to survey those in the same manner

right now. Certainly when the coconut trees mature and

other food crops mature andusaeem we can see that there

would be some interest in doing some sampling at that time.

Mz. MURTHA. Two other questions. One: Are there any
#

“+

other atolls in the northern Marshalls that you have not
~

surveyed, or that you have surveyed and you haven't

mentioned the results?  
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A RADLOGICAL
Dr. WACHHOLZ. et we conductedsurvey of 11 eatolls and

=

two islands as part of the northern Marshall Islands

aut On THIS MATTER
radiological survey. az would dezer, to Mr. Deal.

Mr. DEAL. Thank you. We provided, thre—othere-day, Mr.

a

Chalirmane and—ypoeterdusp, ‘the final report of the external
anenei

 

-vadiation doses of that surveyresreaoay,
en _

There will be a number of copies available in = short

period of time. We have a second printing.

of DoESw'T PRESENT wT A
The report, ‘the Survey @idn-t—shew us, any surprises. We

found the radiation essentially where we expected to find

at. This survey has provided a guideline for the internal

dose siudies and the things Dr. Wachholz was talking about.

So I think we have a very extensive base of information

THA
,eocuments and shows the condition of those atolls today, the

ones that did get radiation and those that didn't.

Mr. MURTHA. Why do we have high radiation levels on some

atolls, and others, we don't? For instance, Enewetak, I

would have thought, would have been much higher, but it is

at a satisfactory level. Why is that?

Mr. DEAL. It has to do with the conditions of the

testing at the time. When the weapons testing program was

going on in the early ‘50s, &@-gueser and late '40s, there
«

were certain atolls that they conducted nuclear tests on.

I think there were, I have forgotten exact numbers, but

Wehia

there were around 100 sh@t in a number of places there, with
h  

11)
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ot Atolls

the bulk of them being Bikini and Enewetak.

‘ “ For THESE TESTS.
At Enewetak Atoll, they used the northern islands, That is

Reabis7 en
A wee

why you have the, problems there. thet—wesChe shot islands, 7

wine Pee awe , Pore

Frey-ptianred The sm testsin such away that the wind would

MYL

carry the fallout out to sea, so they did not get,fallout in

ave" WSepnos prEwlwetak A7oLe.

That is basicelly the reason. Bikini was the same way.

Mr. MURTHA. Mr. deYoung, what activities is the

Department of Interior engaged in with regards to the

affected atolls?

Mr. DEYOUNG. By ‘‘affected atolls,'' I assume you are

yeferring to Bikini, Enewetak and probably Rongelap and

Utirik in which we actually had some fallout occur [and] that

directly affected the people.

The people of Bikini and Enewetak were not affected by the

fallout. They had heen relocated and so were outside of the

fallout area.

With respect to Rongelap and Utirik, a medical monitoring

program has been under way since 1954. This has been

conducted under the auspices of the Department of Energy.

In recent years, Congress has appropriated funds for

 thypn sf rel 4 -
compensation for,the allout.Wictims) I am pleased to

report that the compensation is up to date, and there is at

the present time adequate reserve in the fund, we think, to
a pet Ling ~ l wo.

coverf\tew cases that might occur within the cominghyears.  
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The Enewetak people, and you will be hearing more directly

from them later on this morning, have been returned to the

southern islands of Enewetak.

They actualiy returned in two groups. Haid of them

returned last April. The second half returned in October.

They are occupying new communities in the southern islands

of Enewetak and Medren, and a small island, Japtan.

Since the crops in the southern island are not yet

bearings it Will be another six or seven years before that

occurs, you have a situation where you have a new community,

but no food crops, no trees, little or no shade, [so that]fhe

people of Enewetak hav€éalways anticipated they would

continue jprobably| to use the—is-end Ujetangon which they

have been residing for the last several decades as a

community to which they would go to gather food.

Possibly some of eneoyeens. periods of time.

The group that went back to Enewetak last year decided they

would try on a trial basis, for three to four months, to see
“4 4wee”

if they really could adapt to [this] brand new community that

Branly Crea ap frbduchs, ye

doesn't have trees and/\thingslike—this..

The bulk of the group seems to have decided that it is

bo Lesee Ci. 61ty A420
feasible, probably with sone returntollyjelansg. A month

ago, approximately 90 of the Eneuetak people returned to

Ujelang. We don't know precisely what the-Ujelang Council

has in mind, whether [they will set up/a revolving group that  
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moves back and forthA This is something that they will be

telling us in the future.

The Bikini problem is still before us. We had, as the

committee knows, originally proposed to move the people back

to the Island of Bikini. That program was completely washed

out several years ago when it was learned that the food

intake on the Island of Bikini, through the plants, was such

that Bikini Island simply could not be used for habitation

or for agricultural purposes.

that

[and I think[fhe estimates at that timedland) to my
Qt: Lat

understanding, are still valid today,,jit will be 60 to 90

years before the Island of Bikini can be used.

The Island of Eneu, which was somewhat south of the 1954

fallout, I think something like seven miles south of Bikini

Island, did not receive as much Feerontut LG a

As Dr. Wachholz earlier indicated,Ajunder certain stringent

conditions, possibly could be used for at least some

resettlement. I say ''some,'' because there is a question

as to whether that small island could support all of the

Bikinians, even if theaw stringent regulations could be met.

I must say very candidly, there is some feeling that the

stringent regulations that mugt be followed are of such a

nature that they cannot: be guaranteed in the future.

This originally led the Department to not consider Eneu as

a place of resettlement. The people of Bikini, however,  
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257 asked for that decision to be reconsidered,enduthai”led to

258; the dose assessment work that Dr. Wachholz mentioned a

259; Little earlier.

260 The people of |Enewetak and Bikini, and their legal

261) adviser, Beet have retained independent scientific

262; consultants who will be examining the results done by the

263 Department of Energy, and will be advising the people of

264; Bikini on those results later this year.

265 In the interim period, we [do] have @ program of temporary

266! rehabilitation on Kili Islands qa We are looking forward to

267 \what we call] a long-range rehabiliation of Kili, since it

268; appears Kili must be used for a considerable period of time.

269 The details on those programs can be addressed by Mr.

270| High, the acting Deputy Commissioner, because he has some

271; last-minute details on that particular program.

272 I would be very happy to have him answer.

273 Mx. MURTHA. Mr. High.

274 Mr. BIGH. Yes, Mr. Chairman. It is a little difficult

275! to hear back there with our backs to Mr. deYoung. As fT

276) understand, the question is on Kili, is that correct?

277 I have, Mr. Chairman, a report. I have also visited Kili

278} one time in furtherance of the: payment which was made by the

279/| United States Congress... I turned out to be the messenger

280/ with the money, which was a very popular task, I can tell

281] you.  
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So I have done that on behalf of the Congress. The

statement I have from the former High Commissioner, Mr.

Winkle, could, perhaps, be basically read or paraphrased.

But it is this, that in conjunction with the people of

Bikini, there have been a number of actions taken in the

past few years and recently to try and ease the conditions

that they face there.

As you know, four months of the year, there are very harsh

waves that they encounter and the island becomes practically

inaccessible for the field trip ships.

I encountered that, myself. We had to lay off the island

for some time before we could get ashore. f personally

watched the boat tip. People scattered every which

qairection, outboard engines going up in the air. A very

dangerous situation.

We were delayed in our departure about two days even

getting off the island. This was in January. You can't

quite appreciate it until you experience it, in water up to

here.

You had videotapes yesterday. I have some I took when I

was out there just for farm purposes. I don't have them

here, but they are very graphic when you see what they do.

So High Commissioner winile, and certainly I, myself,

realize that there are conditions that need to be mitigated

and lessened if the people are to stay there for a  
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continuing length of time.

So that is the basis from which I am sure Mr. Winkle was

workine. As you know, there have been visits to otherz

Sites, alternate resettlement sites. They have been

basically unsuccessiul.

The people and leaders have viewed locations in Hawaii,

Wake Island, there was anover-flight of Palmyra. As I

understand it, the air field was such that the military

plane that had the representatives on it could not land, so

they did not actually land on the island.

They over-flew it but because of the distance from the

azyea to which they are used to living, some other things, it

Simply did not appear to be a feasible site for them.

They felt it would be too isolated. So from the places we

have looked at, it appeazs until they can return to their
Qe

t

original homeland, eat appears to be it at the moment, at

least, realistically speaking. It isn't a very popular

decision.

Mz. MURTHA. What is the distance you are talking about?

Mr. HIGH. You mean with Palmyra?

Mr. MURTHA. Yes.

Mr. HIGH. I think it is, 4000 miles or something from

Hawaii. It is quite a ways auay. As faz as the facilities

on Kili, my own personal impression when I want ashore was

that the housing is very good, but it is wood construction,  
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select an independent, non-U.S. Government scientist to

validate, review and assess BOE'’s radiological studies of

Bikini.

The Bikinians have selected Epidemiology Resources, Inc.

CERI) of Boston, Massachusetts, led by Dr. Henry I. Kohn,

professor emeritus at Harvard Medical School, to conduct

this review.

Phase I of the review, to be funded by DOE, will involve

the preparation of a technical scientific evaluation of

DOE's conclusions.

Phase II, to be funded by DOI, will involve the.

preparation of a bilingual lay booklet for the Bikinians and

a visit to Kili by ERI to explain its conclusions and

recommendations and to answer questions the Bikinians may

have.

This work is ready to be conducted immediately, and a trip

to Kili has been tentatively scheduled for the late fall.

It is hope that ERI's project will constitute the final word

for now on the radiological safety of Bikini and Eneu.

As a brief update on where the independent assessment

stands, DOI has acknowledged a willingness to support this

Phase II aspect, the preparation of a booklet for the

Bikinians and a visit by the scientists to Kili.

As to Phase I, the technical report, to be funded by DOE,

we have not yet reached an agreement with DOE on the exact  
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level of funding and the exact scope of the work to be

performed.

We are hopeful to get this resolved just as soon as

possible, meaning in the next 10 days, because the project

really should go ahead.

DOE has its budgetary constraints. We are trying to pare

this down to the simplest revieu possible that still meets

the critera set forth in the settlement agreement, which is

to provide an independent assessment for the Bikinians.

The last area of needed appropriations is ongoing costs

and activities, including travel and related expenses,

improved educational facilities on Kili, contingency

funding, the health care program referred to earlier,

periodic radiological surveys of Bikini Atoll and updated

yadiation dose assessments.

Mr. MURTHA. I would like you to provide some detailed

information for the record, breaking down the various

suggestions you have and estimated costs of those

suggestions.

Mr. WEISGALL. I will do so, and provide that to the

committee shortly.

[The information follows: }
‘.
-
+

RXRKEXKKKECOMMITTEE INSERT *%*EERRKX  
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wood with tin and so forth.

It wouldn't last through one typhoon on Saipan, but a lot

of things don't. They don’t normally have typhoons in this

area, but we have had high winds of late.

We had tidal wave action a few years ago, waves came up

and washed the temporary platforms off the foundations. I

Saw that. or effects of it.

Sc they do have wind and do need to be prepared against

tae fact that you might get a real typhoon out there and the

people would have nothing but wood houses to protect them.

In that regard, there is a community center, typhoon

shelter combinations, a building which was being constructed

while I was there.

I would say it is very well-constructed. It has huge pre-

fabbed, pressed-wood beams. It looks like one of these

steel buildings with the steel work inside it, only it's

done out of wood.

It looked to me like it would stand about anything that

would come along. That is the only building constructed to

that degree of strength on the island that I saw.

Mr. MURTHA. How many people can get inside the building?

Mr. HIGH. I am sure the representatives from Kili can

tell you better than I, but it looked to me like everyone

could get in.

It's a huge structure. It looked like you could play  
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basketball. It's a pretty big building. There are

approximately 68 temporary houses, cook houses, showers,

three classrooms, an access road.

I am not quite sure what that refers to. There is a road

that runs down the middle of the housing area. When I say

**yoad,"* when I was there, it consisted of basically sand.

I mean, it was difficult to walk in. So I am not sure what

the access road is.

Someone from Kili, I think, would be better equipped to

tel you about that.

Mr. MURTHA. Do you have vehicles there?

Mr. HIGH. When I was there, the only vehicle I saw was a

tractor with a front-end loader that was used by the

contractor, Holmes &€ Narver, who were doing work on the

island. That would run up and down occasionally.

While I was there, I walked and everyone I saw was

Walking. I don't Know if that situation has changed, but

there is no paving I saw.

The storm shelter I see mentioned here is 4000 square

feet, this building I was telling you about. The runway

that has been requested, the airstrip, was the subject of a

contract signed by High Commissioner Winkle the day before

he leit office, about three days before I left for

Washington.

It is with. I think, AIC, American International  
je
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Contractors. I believe that is who it is with. A gentleman

naned) Tolkoes. They have done work there and quite

successfully.

They are already purchasing equipment, mobilizing gear,

and ready to go in and do the work. I have talked with

them. They are going to, of course, use people from Kili to

assist with the construction.

International Bridge Corporation. It used to be with AIC,

but it's split off. That has been Signed. The project is

bonded, so there should be no difficulty in seeing it

through to completion. It is planned to begin by the end of

May.

So as far as mobilizing, they are doing that now. So

that's correct. This shows a completion date of September,

this year. I am not sure that is still correct. I don't

recall.

Mr. MURTHA. Do they have the same weather problems there

we were talking about yesterday?

Mr. HIGH. Well, you have rain. But throughout the Trust

Territory, you have a dry season, a wet season, a trade wind

season and so forth. The main problem on Kili, as I

understand, is the wind, winter trade winds that whip the

seas up. ”

You can't get onshore with equipment. Once that season is

over, I wouldn't think you would have much problem. Getting  
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equipment on and off can be a problem.

Sitting at the desk, I don't know how they do it. In

addition to the airstrip, also a part of this $.5 million

contract, and it is a 3000 foot airstrip we are talking

about, there will also be a replacement or repair of certain

facilities that were damaged in the wave action in December.

There is also supposed to be some kind of an air support

terminal. I think that is a pretty fancy term for what will

probably simply be a place to be out of the weather while

you are Waiting for the plane.

Again, I am not really conversant with the details of

that. I know the High Commissioner felt that the, that one

important aspect of all this is that was developed through

the joint efforts of the people of Kili, their Council and

High Commissioner's Office and Interior, the territories.

He spent more time on the Marshalls and Enewetak and so

forth than any other area.

Mr. MURTHA. How do you get around these different

islands if you don’t have an airport?

Mr. HIGH. You go by field ship. We have several

assigned in the Marshall Islands.

Mr. MURTHA. How big a ship is it?

Mx. HIGH. I am not much on tonnage. It looks like a

small freighter. It has passenger cabins, maybe three or

four. Everything else is deck space.  
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Those ships at this point were in good shape. The problem

is the fuel and so forth to keep them moving.

Mr. MURTHA. When you are finished with this

construction, will you have any rehabilitation money left,

er does that use it all up?

Mr. HIGH. We had $750,000 left in that account, and this

is 500. So we will have a couple hundred thousand left, as

I understand it.

But that is the idea. Other than that, the next step,

then, would be some kind of a master plan, similar to what

was done on Enewetak.

That is the next step. The Department is working on that

now. Its scope has been basically prepared, but they still

have to go into the master plan, A&E, what they need, how

they are going to do it.

That is if this is going to be a place of some permanency.

Mr. MURTHA. When will the master plan be completed?

Mr. HIGH. I would have to defer to Mr. deYoung on that.

Mz. DEYOUNG. The master plan, as indicated, is in the

scoping stage. One of the problems has been, originally,

the people of Bikini requested that part of the master plan

be the possible use also of Eneu Island.

Since we have not as yet ‘been able to determine whether

Eneu Island will be part of that master plan, we have been

delaying the actual implementation of preparing the master  
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plan until that particular segment is resolved.

This does not mean that the part of the master plan

involving the permanent rehab’of Kili Island, and e small

island called Ejit, which is off of the Majuro in the main

district center, will be held in abeyance.

But an overall master plan will not be complete until we

know whether Eneu is going to be part of it or not part of

it _f. ’ Atos wk us ¢ cf Brky wil A.

[Because that actually] will determine the number of houses,

for example, you would put on Kili, and other facilities. .

Amd ©: Lew Vad Peay, :

The chances are that Eneu wowed not be part of Gat

We hope to xresolve this aspect shortly. As the acting

Anigh Commissioner indicated, the current fund, the

resettlement account, is nearing exhaustions teetting pretty

close to the end of it.

The Budget Officer of the Trust Territories does have some

information, I believe, that could be useful in indicating

what [possible] ongoing costs are needed, om would be needed in

carrying out a master plan, and also the interim work that

has to be done until we get a final Bikini resettlement

program in operation.

Mr. MURTHA. Mr. deYoung, Public Law 96-205, passed March

12, 1980, requires the Secretary of Interior to submit a

plan to Congress no later than January Ist of this year for

medical care and treatment for people affected by nuclear  
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weapons testing.

Has that plan been submitted to Congress?

Mr. DEYOUNG. Yes, Mr. Chairman. A preliminary report

was submitted to Congress on January 7, 1981. tm I~ have

an additional copy here [just for the convenience of the

committee.

The report submitted to Congress was not a final plan, the

reason being that Public Law 96-205, mandating the plan, had

certain language over which there have been varied

interpretations, and differences of opinions [and] I May say

very strong differences of opinion, between the individual

peoples involved, their legal representatives, various

Federal agencies, and the government of the Marshall

Islands.
Sutty

So what we presented to Congress on January 7 was [some]

preliminary conclusions. The Department neither endorses

nor rejects these at this time. They are not in [erry final

form.

We do feel that the original legislation requires

clarification. I can tell you very briefly what the

preliminary proposals indicated. Beeause] fhere are roughly

anywhere from 2570 Probably) to3000 people involved from the

four named atolls, Not all living on the atolls today, bert

Veeningfromtheatolis| many of those are scattered in other

} f
farts of the atolls] Wie webedig  
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You may have more Rongelapese living away from Rongelap

Island than actually on it, fhe only exception [being] the

people of Enewetak that have been an integrated group and

have, in the main, lived together and stayed together.

Wiehe -
—

This is not the case with the people of

Rongelap, orthe people of Bikini,an—which Phere are 3- to

aet

400 Bikinians\ away from Bikini Island at the present time.
Mt fee av EY

The contractor who (¢rew—upthe health aspect of the

proposal drew one up which said it would be elnost,
“a relia °ger

Ss -

impossible to diveyt Special care for theme; people from the

overall care the Marshall Island Government Health Service

provides, because these people are all over the place.

Zeek ate etd, tet C4, Lee ett: Lf

drew up a proposal in which health care would be

provided in essence for the Marshall Islands, but which DAL

would cover the provisions of Public Law 96-205. The cost

estimate of that for the first year was $11 million.

Mr. MURTHA. How are they going to do it?

Mr. DEYOUNG. It would be done by, essentially, upgrading

the current Marshall Island Government health system. Out

of that $11 million, $3 million would be provided by the

the)
Marshall Island Government from @he@e regular operating

budget. a

There would have to be a supplement of $8 million. I£ you

“Tie ite Aryhag

did a similar-typejupgrading programjfor the people of the

four atolls named in the bill. regardless of where they  
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were, (in—etherwords;—not-only on the four-wtottss—but—eit-

ouex—theMarshalls.which] would necessitate American
the 7a wohlid

doctors, a medical-type ship to go around/ fhe cost was

estimated at $10.6 million, of which 3 million also would

come from the Marshall Island Government.

In other words, those tuwofwere fairly equal. We were also

asked by some of the participants, what would it cost if you

provided special care only for the people living physically

NP iveA

on the four\atolls?
A

To do thatAwould need, again, fupgrading; American

physicians, a ship to take the medical teams around,

upgraded dispensaries. That cost was estimated at roughly

$2.8 million a year, which would be completely subsidized by

the U.S. Government. if 4 tha de Lrrfevad

I would like to note. however, that \eécat would provide
/

AED
care only for a person thet was physically living on one of

those four islands. If you were a fallout victim living in
Ani dint 7,

Majuro, under this fering] you wouldn't get any special

treatment.

If you were a Bikinian living elsewhere, you wouldn't get

any special treatment, you would simply have to go to the

Majuro Hospital and get tte treatment there.

Mr. MURTHA. How does ihe Interior Department intend to

make a decision, and when; and then when will you get the

appropriation request up to us?  
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Mr. DEYOUNG. All tight.,j Since, as I indicated, there is

this widely divergent range of opinions, particularly

amongst the affected people themselves and their legal

representatives, and the Marshall Island Government, as well

as Federal entities, we are proposing to ask for

Clarification of the language in this section of Public bau

96-205.

(and! We will be submitting some ideas for clarification

within the next several months. Once that clarification is

obtained from the Congress, and we know precisely what the

Congress had in mind as to what should be covered, we then

are prepared to redraft a suitable health care program

within the parameters that are established more clearly.

And at that point, when that plan is agreed upon by the

Department of Energy, would look at it from a funding point

of view.

I would defer to the Department of Energy at this point,

A
because the law at this time, designates then as the funding

entity.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. Dr. Burr.

Dr. BURR. If the law remains with the stipulation that

the program is to be planned ahd managed by Interior, but

funded by Department of .Energy, which is a little unusual as

to management--~-

Mr. MURTHA. Why is it set up that way?  
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Dr. BURR. That is something I can't answer, Mr.

Chairman. I really don't know the logic in setting the bill

up that way. But if it does remain that way, then, of

course, it would be the responsibility of the Department of

Energy to come forward with--

Mr. MURTHA. What has the Department of Energy got to do

with this? I don't understand this. I understand what it

Says, you are suppesed to fund it. But why are you funding

it?

Dr. BURR. The only answer I can give you, Mr. Chairman,

is, that is the way the law reads.

The law says, for some reason or other, that the

Department of Energy would seek the money.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. Mr. Chairman, if I could just add a

reetonent to that. The only amplification that I could

A THAT ; ; et
offer isGyin some of the legislative history of the la

there is reference to the fact that me law is a follow-on

roTuiizewermt to the U.S. nuclear weapons activity.

Mr. MURTHA. Which was run by the Department of Energy.
J 7 THE prone & we her

THESE Rete TIES weERE Comhue Ed a “ MrSeek APTHaT T f

Dr. WACHHOLZ. Sointly by the Department of Energy, and

THE “ Tuts RESPOWSISLITYP

pvepartment of Defense. Aeqordingly—st has been allocated

to the Department of Energy. apparently. But that is the

only suggestion I can offer. x

Mr. MURTHA. It looks to me, Mr. deYoung, like you are

talking about three months, you will have your proposal on  
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health care.

Then you will have a clarification which will take several

months. Then, of course, the funding apparatus will take

some time. |

What happens to the people in the meantime?

Mr. DEYOUNG. In the interim period, we will proceed as

we have in the past. Medical monitoring of the (£nt2eert

peopiact Rongelap and Utirik, will continue.

If they need medical care directly related to the fallout,

that will be provided by Department of Energy. If they need

routine medital care, and that can be taken care of by the

Marshall Island Heaith Service, they will be referred to the

Marshall Island health program.

Mr. MURTHA. Which, according to the testimony yesterday,

is not in the best condition.

Mr. DEYOUNG. I think, Mr. Chairman--

Mr. MURTHA. They showed slides of the hospital.

Nz. DEYOUNG. I think, Mr. Chaizxman, the slides yesterday

were from Palau. The Marshall Island health systen,

obviously, needs upgrading. The Marshall Island Delegation

is here. I would prefer that they speak to this issue

later. #

Mr. MURTHA. How is Palau compared to the rest of the

islands there? How is their facility compared to the

ethers?  
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Mr. DEYOUNG. Palau’s facility, at the present time, .
AD Ov

(e+shezthanMarshalls.see—the—eial hospitalg built 15 to

20 years ago.

Mr. MURTHA. What I am trying to do, though, is get a

picture. Is this the same; is this worse; or is this better

than the other hospitals?

Mr. DEYOUNG. ‘In Palau?

Mr. MURTHA. Yes. What I saw, how do you compare it with

the other hospitals?

Mr. HIGH. Mr. Chairman, I have been to all of them at

one time or another. In Ponape, we have a new hospital. It

is a very good facility. The problem is maintenance. I was

told by an individual in the last 30 days that it is

starting to get dirty and going downhill.

This isn't really funding, just Keeping i ania

Nevertheless, the basic structure is good. eentanhas a new

hospital. In Palau, I have seen some construction there. I

think it is an out-patient facility. The basic structure is

poor and needs to be upgraded.

When you talk about a tin roof on a structure, that is not

necessarily bad. There are houses recently sold for

$100,000 with tan roofs. But the hospital in Palau does

definitely have to be improved and upgraded.

The Marshalls Hospital is not a good situation. They have

a plan coming before the High Commissioner's Office now,  
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OICC, to go with a $4 million panel-type hospital.

Mr. MURTHA. Are they worse then Palau or better?

Mr. HIGH. In the Marshalls? I would say they are

comparable. There are two of those areas that need

upgrading.

The other in the trust territory that is bad is the Truk

Hospital.

Mr. MURTHA. If you gentlemen would stay, but just leave

the table in case we run into any problems that we may have

to ask you about, then we will ask the Bikini Delegation to

come forward.

Mr. HIGH. Mr. Chairman, one last point on the Marshalls

Hospital. Mr. deYoung points out there is funding now

available, $8 million available for the hospital in the

Marshalls.

Their current plans I saw a month ago show 4.4 is what

they intend to spend on it. The question is whether it is

going to be temporary, or permanent.

Thank you.
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Mr. WEISGALL. Thank you.

Mr. MURTHA. Mr. Weisgall, as I understand it, you are

the attorney representing them.

If you will introduce the other gentlemen at the table. I

undersiand you also have a statement, is that accurate?

Mr. WEISGALL. That is correct, Mr. Chairman. The Bikini

Delegation, just going from one end eof the table to the

other, at the far end is Nathan Note, who is the scribe of

the Bikini Council.

Next to him is Mr. Johnson, the treasurer of the Bikini

Council. In the middle is Tomaki Juda, who is the

magistrate of the Bikinians.

To my immediate right is Senator Henchi Balos, who is the

elected representative of the people of Bikini to the

Marshall Islands Legislature.

And to my left is my colleague, James Hamilton. We are co

counsel for the people of Bikini.

Senator Balos would like to make a brief introductory

remark. Then I would like to proceed with some prepared

remarks.

Mr. MURTHA. Proceed, Senator.

Senator BALOS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is a great

honor for the leaders of the people of Bikini to appear

before your committee today on behalf of all the Bikini

people.  
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Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to introduce to you the new

committee, our legal advisers, who have been introduced by

Mr. Weisgall. Mr. James Hamilton, Mr. John Weisgall.

Mr. Weisgall has been our legal counsel for the past six

years. He has visited us on the island a number of times.

With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I would like. on behalf

of my colleagues, to ask Mr. Weisgall to make a statement on

our behalé.

Thank you.

Mr. MURTHA. Thank you, Senator.

Mr. Weisgall.

Mr. WEISGALL. During the past year, Mr. Chairman, I have

met regularly with the Bikini Council and members of the

Bikini community on Kili, and elsewhere, to review

resettlement questions.

I guess I have been to Kili three times in the last 12

months. The community is somewhat dispersed, as you heard

earlier this morning.

Of the approximately 1000 Bikinians, the majority, about

550 or so, live on Kili, another, oh, 250 or so, live on

Majuro Atoll, a number of them living on Ejit Island in

Majuro.

The remainder are scattered throughout the Marshall

Islands.

One has a strong sense of deja vu in appearing before this  
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subcommittee, which has actively followed the Bikini

Situation since 1978.

Many of the same questions raised in 1978, and again in

1979 and 1980, remain unanswered today. In 1978, when the

people living on Bikini Island were again moved off

following disclosure that their body burdens of radioactive

cesium-137 greatly exceeded Federal standards, the United

States and Trust Territory Governments presented a document

to the Bikinians stating that ''Some of the Bikini people

will choose to remain on Kili indefinitely, and the

governments will accordingly undertake a program for. the

permanent rehabilitation of Kili.*'

In 1980, I outlined the details of ea comprehensive

rehabilitation program for Kili in testimony before this

subcommittee. Yet little action has been taken in the last

three years to improve the plight of the Bikinians.

Immediate action to upgrade Kili and Ejit is urgently

needed, since the United States has declared that Bikini

Atoll is off-limits for resettlement for 20 to 60 years.

In May 1979, the Department of Energy wrote to the

Interior Department concerning radiological conditions on

Eneu. DOE stated that the degree of uncertainty in

estimating long-term radiation doses on Eneu was Similar to

the problems found on Enewetak Atoll.

Based on these uncertainties, an Environmental Impact  
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Statement prepared for the resettlement of Enewetak had

recommended a tightening of applicable U.S. radiation

guidelines from 500 millirem per year to 250 milliren.

Applying the Enewetak criteria to Eneu., DOE concluded that

"'Even with imported food, the radiation doses to the people

on Eneu could not be expected to be in compliance with the

Enewetak criteria for about 20-25 years.'’

Even with the stringent conditions being met, the dose

predictions for Eneu would exceed the 250 millirem standard

which had been adopted by the U.S. Government for Eneu.

Some of the numbers are below 500, but every dose estimate

we have seen and is contained in the DOE booklet prepared

etee eee
for the Bikinians, does have a predicted dose over 250

millirem, even with these very stringent requirements being

imposed.

Based on this information which was first presented in

preliminary form in May of '79, two years ago, the

Department of Interior promptly informed the Bikinians,

Congress and the High Commissioner of the Trust Territory

that Eneu could no longer be considered as a resettlement

site for the Bikinians.

By letter dated June 1, 1979, DOI wrote to the Bikini

leaders, stating: ;

"'AL] of us here deeply regret that Eneu Island cannot be

used for residence for at least another 20-25 years, since  
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we understand the deep feelings of the people of Bikini and

theixy hopes, that even though Bikini Island is not usable

now, Eneu Island possibly might have been. This is not now

possible.''

Similarly, in a report submitted to Congress one month

later, pursuant to Public Law 95-348, DOI stated that there

was ''no question that the Island of Eneu must be placed off

limits as a place of residence for the Bikini people for at

least another 20-25 years.''

Despite the United States' formal announcement in 1979

that Eneu Island could not be resettled for at least another

20-25 years, certain U.S. officials have inaccurately held

out the hope that parts of Bikini Atoll can be resettled

soon.

For example, during a two-day dose assessment meeting held

on Kili on October 8-9, 1980, called at the request of the

people of Bikini to receive information from the U.S.

Government regarding the radiological safety of Bikini

Atoll, the United States failed orally or in writing to

inform the Bikinians that their homeland could not be

resettled for many years.

To the contrary, a member:of the DOE team at the dose

assessment meeting stated unequivocally to the Bininians

that he would not hesitate to live on Eneu with his family.

A bilingual booklet, given to you earlier this morning,  
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prepared by DOE, discussed only the application of the

discarded 500 millizrem standard.

No mention was made of the 250 million standard adopted by

the United States for evaluating living conditionson Bikini

or Eneu, and no one pointed out that all of the booklet's

predicted levels of exposure for Bikini and Eneu

unacceptably exceeded the 250 millirem standard adopted by
—

the U.S. Government. ee

At the meeting, one of the Bikini leaders, who was rather

surprised at DOE's latest switch on Eneu, asked what had

happened in the 15 months since the June 71, 1979 U.S.

Government’s letter to the Bikinians to change the statement

in that letter that Eneu could not be resettled.

The DOE spokesman replied that he was not aware of any

such letter or position by the United States.

This assessment was not disputed by the other six DOE

officials and scientists, led by an acting Deputy Assistant

Secretary, and the three DOI officials, led by a Deputy

Assistant Secretary, who attended the dose assessment

meeting.

Mx. MURTHA. What was the date?

Mr. WEISGALL. The date of the dose assessment letter was
=

October 9, 1980. These kinddof actions and statements by

the United States are extremely counterproductive, to say

the least. They are wholly at odds with official U.S.  
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policy on Bikini and Eneu.

They sadly raised false hopes among the Bikinians.

Moreover--and perhaps most unfortunately--such views may have

provided a reason for the failure of the United States to

make Kili a permanent home for the Bikinians.

One depends on the other. Until a final decision is

reached on Bikini and Eneu, it is difficult to go ahead with

a decision.

XY have said this for two years. The true facts must be

recognized and dealt with. The official U.S. position

regarding resettlement of Bikini and Eneu has not changed

Since June 1, 1979. Bikini is off limits for at least 30 to

60 years, and Eneu is off limits for at least 20-25 years.

The United States has stated for several years that the

Bikinians cannot return to their homeland. Nevertheless, it

has failed--until the last two weeks--to take any action to

make the Bikinians’ '‘temporary'' home on Kili a more

permanent one.

Nearly three years ago, in testimony before this

Subcommittee, Magistrate Juda referred to his people as

"*victims of bureaucratic incompetence.'’

That assessment still applies today. It led the Bikinians

to bring a lawsuit six years ago to force the United States

to conduct a thorough radiological survey of Bikini before

continuing with the resettlement of the atoll.  
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Mil. MURTHA. Let me understand what you a@re saying. They

did an initial assessment. Then after they were forced to

do an additional detailed assessment, they found the higher

levels of radiation, is that accurate?

Mx. WEISGALL. That is correct.

Mr. MURTHA. If it hadn't been for the lawsuit, they

would not have found these higher levels of radiation, is

that accurate?

Mr. WEISGALL. Well, there were signs before the lawsuit

was brought that there were problems. That was why the

lawsuit was brought. |

Mr. MURTHA. The question is, the government acted in

response to the lawsuit. not on their own initiative.

Is that what you are saying?

Mr. WEISGALL. That is generally correct. There were

trouble signs early on, but the resettlement was continued.

That was held in limbo for a three- or four-month period.

Then the lawsuit was brought, which said in essence, don't

continue with the resettlement of Bikini until you conduct a

thorough comprehensive radiological survey to see if it was

safe.

Mr. MURTHA. Was there a decision in the lawsuit?

Mr. WEISGALL. Pursuant to the settlement in the lawsuit,

the thorough radiological survey was conducted. That showed

it was not safe and resettlement was stopped.  
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This assessment also compelled the people to bring a

lawsuit two months ago seeking just compensation from the

United States for the taking and destruction of Bikini Atoll

and damages for breaches of fiduciary obligations owed to

the Bikinians by the United States. This is a lawsuit born

of frustrations.

It is a last resort to force the United States to give the

Bikinians what is justly due them. The lawsuit will be

prosecuted vigorously. but it is not an excuse for Congress

to avoid its responsibility to appropriate funds necessary

for the current well-being of the people.

Mx. MURTHA. How much money are you talking about here?

Mr. WEISGALL. The lawsuit seeks damages and just

compensation from the United States of a total of $450

million. That is limited to the destruction and taking of

Bikini Atoll.

It is not related to any current obligations of the United

States to continue caring for the Bixinians in a Kili

rehabilitation project.

Two weeks ago, as you heard earlier, the High Commissioner

awarded a contract to a private company in Guam to construct

a 3000-foot coral airstrip on Kili. This airstrip, when

completed, will help make Kili more accessible, end the

island's isolation and aid the people in case of food

shortages or medical emergencies.  
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However, the funding of this airstrip and the construction

of classrooms that were destroyed in a storm last December

will virtually deplete the Bikini Resettlement

Rehabilitation Account established in 1978 pursuant to

Public Law 95-348 for the resettlement and relocation of the

Bikini people.

This fund must be replenished as soon as possible in order

to carry out other Bikini projects that are long overdue.

Among these projects, and you have heard of some of them

already from the Interior witnesses, but among them are the

preparation of a master plan for the rehabilitation of Kili

and Ejyit. Some preliminary scoping work has been completed,

but a final master plan should be prepared.

Implementation of the master plan, with the construction

of housing and community facilities that will be more than

temporary in nature.

Continuation of food support for Kili. The present food

program provides USDA food as a diet supplement. This USDA

food is not meant to--and, in fact, does not constitute--

provide a balanced and nutritious diet for the Bikinians.

Section 601(b) of Public Law 96-597, signed into law just

last December, authorizes the Secretary of the Interior to

provide for the ‘*'purchase of f£ooa'? and ‘'for the

transportation of such food'' for the people of Bikini.

The High Commissioner's office should devise and implement  
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a balanced and nutritious food program for the Bikinians

living on Kili and Ejit.

The food program currently supporting the people of

Enewetak Atoll could serve as a model for the Kili-Ejit

program, and it may be cost-efficient to coordinate the.

planning of this program with the one recently implemented

at Enewetak.

Improvements in the Kili aixrstrip. The limited funds

available for Bikini permit only the construction of a

Simple 3000-foot coral strip and for the clearing of trees

for 1000 feet on either end of the airstrip.

The Bikinians feel that the strip should be lengthened to

5000 feet in order to accommodate certain types of aircraft

that may be needed in an emergency.

In addition, improving the surface of this rudimentary

airstrip may be necessary in order to ensure continued safe

access to Kili. Lastly. some compensation may be in order

for those who are particularly injured by the placement of

the airstrip.

Funding an independent scientific assessment of DOE's

radiological survey of Bikini. You have heard a little bit

about this earlier this morning. Pursuant to an agreement

settling the litigation initiated by the Bikinians in 1975,

the United States agreed to conduct a thorough radiological

survey of the atoll and agreed that the people of Bikini may  
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Mr. WEISGALL. Mr. Chairman, the United States has a

special obligation to the people of Bikini. It committed an

injustice to the Bikinians when it moved them off their

atoll in 1946 without just compensation and without caring

for them.

No such action would be sanctioned today. But for the

United States to fail to come to grips with this problem

after 35 years is to continue that injustice. This must

stop.

Thank you very much.

Mr. MURTHA. Thank you, very much, Mr. Weisgall. Thank

you, Senator, and gentlemen.

We will have the Delegation from Enewetak.

Is Mr. deYoung still here? I would like a reply from the

Department of Interior and Department of Energy about the

confusion which now exists, and what was said by the

delegation in their meeting.

It is clear to me the Government's position. It is not

clear to me what the delegation said when they were there,

and I would like that confusion to be cleared up for the

record.

Mr. DEYOUNG. Yes, we will provide that for the rvecord.

(The information follows: ]

MERKKELEX COMMITTEE INSERT **48UeEKEE  
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Wednesday, May 13, 1981

DELEGATION FOR ENEWETAK

WITNESSES

HERTES JOHN, MAGISTRATE;

BINTON ABRAHAM, IROIJ RI ENJEBI;

NAPATALY PETER, REPRESENTING IROIJ JOHANNES PETER;

SAM LEVY, SECRETARY;

THEODORE R. MITCHELL, COUNSEL TO ENEWETAK PEOPLE;

JOHN SILK, COUNSEL TO ENEWETAK PEOPLE AND INTERPRETOR;

DR. A. BERTRAND BRILL, CONSULTANT TO ENEWETAK PEOPLE;

DR. MICHAEL A. BENDER, CONSULTANT TO ENEWETAK PEOPLE; AND

DR. ROBERT L. BERGMAN, CONSULTANT TO ENEWETAK PEOPLE
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Mr. MURTHA. Now, Mr. Mitchell, as I understand. is the

counsel. 6

Mx. MITCHELL. Yes, sir.

Mr. MURTHA. Mr. Mitchell, you have 20 minutes for a

presentation. If you will introduce your colleagues, and

then we will proceed.

We have two statements. Both of those statements will

appear for the record.

[The statements of Theodore R. Mitchell and Robert l.

Bergman follow: ]

REEEKKEKKK TNSERT Pb—-1] ExEREREERE
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Mr. MITCHELL. Thank you. To my right is John Silk, who

will serve as translator.

To his right is Hertes John, Magistrate. To his right is

Napataly Peter, a substitute for his father, who is too aged

to make the trap this time.

Binton Abraham, and next to him is Sam Levi, Secretary to

the Counsel.

Mr. MURTHA. We have your statement for the record, Mr.

Mitchell. We know this is a very difficult problem, but

hope you can handle it in 20 minutes.

Mr. MITCHELL. We will certainly try. The Magistrate

would like to make a brief opening statement, translated by

Mr. Silk.

Mr. JOHN. (through interpreter) Mr. Chairman, it is e

great pleasure to appear before you and this committee. TI

have only a few comments to make at this time.

I would like to extend our greetings to you and members of

the committee.

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you and the members of this

committee for the funds which were appropriated last year

for a boat for the use of the people of Enewetak, and also

for the funds that were also appropriated for the

supplemental food progran.

There are, however, a few things which still need to be

accomplished, and we would like to ask the assistance of  
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this committee.

One of these things is the return of the people of Enjebi

to Enjebi Island. We would like to renew our request for

your committee's help to rebuild the necessary houses and

plan the Island.

Another matter of importance to us is the radiation health

program intended for the islands affected by the nuclear

testing program.

We ask your assistance in encouraging the Department of

Interior to complete the plan. That, too, also needs

funding.

Mr. Chairman, in order to facilitate our presentation, we

have asked our lawyer, Mr. Mitchell, and our doctors to

speak on our behalf. Before I give these gentlemen the

balance of the time allotted for our presentation, I would

like to make a general statement about the desires of the

people of Enewetak-

As you are aware, Mr. Chairman, the Atoll of Enewetak has

contributed substantially to the nuclear capability of this

country. As a result, millions of people in this country

have benefited from the use of Enewetak.

Today, the people of this’ country can be confident that

they have a strong military defense system to defend their

country and their homes.

Enewetak, a small dot on the world globe, made a large  
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part of this possible. Today we, the people of Enewetak,

ask the greatest and most powerful country on the face of

the earth to extend a helping hand to the 678 people of

Enewetak.

Mr. Chairman. there is a special relationship between the

Government of the United States and people of Enewetak. We

did not initiate this relationship, nor were we given a

choice. But the fact is, if it is there, it exists.

This is all I have to say, Mr. Chairman. Thank you and

the members of this committee on behalf of the people of

Enewetak. Thank you.

Mr. MURTHA. Because of my time constraints, we are going

to adjourn until 1:00 otclock, then let you come back at

1:00 o'clock and make your additional comments.

I would ask, Mr. deYoung, for you to bring your delegation

back at 1:00 o'clock, also, in case you are needed.

Mr. MITCHELL. Mr. Chairman, I think it would be helpful

if we had the same DOE people back.

Mr. MURTHA. He is going to bring DOE and Interior back.

The committee will now adjourn until 1:00 p.m. Thank you.

(Whereupon, at 11:20 a.m., the subcommittee recessed,

reconvene at 1:00 p.m., the same day.)

to

 
ra



NAME:

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1438

1139

1140

1441

1142

1143

TINY

7745

1146

1147

11498

1149

1150

1351

1152

1153

1154

1155  

HAP 133080 : PAGE 49

RPTR KNOWLES

1:30 p.m.

AFTERNOON SESSION

Mr. YATES. Sorry I couldn't be here this morning. I had

some important business in another Appropriations

subcommittee, and I had to interrogate a witness there

Mr. Mitchell. |

Mr. MITCHELL. Thank you very much. It is a pleasure to

have you chairing the meeting this afternoon. We coverfed

the preliminary matters rather well this morning with Mr.

Murtha.

The elderly gentleman who was with us last year, Mr.

Peter, was not able to make the trip again. In his place is

his son, Nepataly Peter. Some of the other faces here are

familiar to you, I am sure. Hertes John, the Magistrate;

Binton Abraham, from the northern part of the atoll, Enjebi

Iroij; and Sam Levi is the Secretary.

Mr. YATES. We welcome them all.

Mr. MITCHELL. To my left we have three doctors, three

different types. Dr. Brill is our advisor with respect to

cancer, somatic effects of radiation. Dr. Bender is a

geneticist Knowledgeable about, the genetic effects of

radiation. Dr. Berman, to my immediate left, is a

psychiatrist. He will bring to yo some new information

which hasn't been presented before.  
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1756 Mr. YATES. I undestand their statements are all part of

1157| the record, too.

1158 [The information follows: ]

1159

1160 KEEKEKECX INSERT 2-1 ERRREEERRE
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Mr. MITCHELL. That is right.

Mr. YATES. You may proceed.

Mx. MITCHELL. There are two issues that I, given our

limited time, I think we ought to focus on. That is Enjebi,

resettlement of that particular island within the atoll.

Then, if we may, if there is sufficient time, the radiation

health program, which was authorized a year ago, and still

is yet to be planned and budget put together, even though

the Department of the Interior is bringing you a report of

January 7 this year.

Mr. YATES. Is Interior here?

Mr. MITCHELL. They are here.

Mr. YATES. What happened to the report we were to receive

earlier this year?

Mr. DEYOUNG. A preliminary report was supplied on January

7,.1981. It set forth some of the difficulties we had

experienced in preparing the final plan. Clarification is

being sought and a final proposal will be forthcoming in

time.

Mr. YATES. In time means what time?

Mr. DEYOUNG. Within the met six months, perhaps.

Mr. YATES. Did we have s hearing on what the preliminary

plan indicated?

Mr. DEYOUNG. Not as yet.

Mr. YATES. Go ahead, Mr. Mitchell.  
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Mr. MITCHELL. I will be happy to come back to that in due

course. It seems to us--and what I will try to do here is

Just lay a general background for comments from the experts,

and to enable you to more skaligully cross examine--it seems

to us that the Enewetak cleanup and rehabilitation program,

in large part, is a great success story. It is, I think on

the part of nearly everyone involved, from the Enewetak

people, to the Department of Defense, even the Department of

Energy and in many ways. the Department of the Interior as

well, although we are rather critical of them.

I think that with respect to the precise question of the

resettlement of Enjebi, which is the largest part of the

unfinished business before us, we have approached that

question in the most reasonable and prudent fashion so s to

make an informedchoice, an informed decision.

Just to outline in the briefest possible way what we have

done, starting with the cleanup program, which was part and

parcel of the cleanup program was a continual radiological

assessment of what was being done and what should be done

next.

Once the cleanup was finished, there fwas another

radiological survey. Soil measurements, in particular at

Enjebi. Once the plutionium problem was solved so the soil

concentrations of plutionium were at or below 40 microcuries

per gram, it then became a question of what will the radio  
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nuclids do in the food chain?

Following the soil measurements that were made after the

cleanup was finished, we then called upon the Department of

Energy, through the Lawrence Livermore Laboratory in

California, to do an updated dose assessment. They have

done that, and you have before you, presented earlier this

morning, a final dose assessment which, standing alone,

doesn't mean very much to us.

Its conclusion is a number, a predicted radiation dose

which ais based upon the soil measurements, the diet to be

observed by the people, and the way they intend to live upon

that island. Now that has been done.

The next reasonable and logical step~--well it looks like

that.

Dr. BENDER. This is the document?

Mr. MITCHELL. Bruce, was the final dose assessment

provided this morning? I assumed that it was. : d

THE COMMITTEE RECEIVED COPIES OF THE FINAL EWEWET®
Dr. WACHHOLZ. presemnted_this--soenine. ose Mss Essbw

Mr. YATES. That was a different one.

Mr. MITCHELL. Basically the dose assessment is

straightforward, although extremely complicated and

involving a lot of calculations.

Mr. YATES. Do you have notes on this?

Dr. BENDER. No.

Mr. YATES. All right, thank you.  
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Mr. MITCHELL. It is a matter of taking all the soil

measurements, measurements of the radio nuclids on the

island, putting that together with what people intend to

eat, then calculating what the dose will be. That is what

we have done here. The prediction of the dosage is

expressed in MIL/“REM. We give those numbers to Dr. Bender

and Dr. Brill and ask them, what do they mean?

Last ar, we provided you a copy of their report, this blue

covered document. Since that report was completed, the dose

assessment, the final dsoe assessment has been done. So we

have asked Dr. Brill and Dr. Bender, to revise their report.

You have before you their statements, which does that. What

we would like to do, in due course, is have both Dr. Brill

and Dr. Bender comment briefly upon their interpretation of

the dose as it how stands.

Then finally, once the dose, the predicted dose is

interpreted in terms of health effects. an increase in the

risk of cancer, an increase in the risk of genetic effects,

once we have that interpretation from Dr. Bender and Dr.

Brill, the people then are in a position to evaluate that

increased risk in terms of everything else that is important

to them--the value of their land,, the value of

yeestablishing the community at Enjebi, which to them, is of

vital importance.

We brought Dr. Bergman along because we asked him sometime  
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ago, to take a look at all of this, and tell us from the

perspective of a behavioral scientist, what effect it may

have upon he people to keep them away from Enjebi. His

evaluation has been provided to you es a written report for

the record, and we would like him to have the opportunity to

speak briefly to that question. There are potential ill

effects from keeping people away from Enjebi.

Mr. YATES. No ill effects from keeping the people away?

Mr. MITCHELL. There are. There are potential ill

effects, health effects in keeping them away.

Mr. YATES. In other words, they want to go home?

Mr. MITCHELL. That si right. They want very badly to go

home. They feel very badly, as long as they cannot.

Mr. YATES. We read the report submitted by Drs. Bender

and Brill. The conelusion says, after stating premises:

‘'We have reexamined our earlier Enewetak health effects

estimates in light of the more recent dose and cancer risk

coefficient estimates. We find the risk is still small. We

note that our revised estimates remain in remarkably good

agreement with those provided by DOE. We still conclude it

is entirely possible that the radiation exposures of the

Enewetak people, resulting from return of the dry Enewetak

to the southern Islands, and the dry Enjebi to their home,

will never result in even a single case of disease among

either the returning population.''  
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You mean or their descendants rather than of their

descentants? |

Dr. BENDER. There are several typos.

Mr. YATES. That is a typo, isn't it? Or theirz

descendants.

Mr. MITCHELL. It may be helpful, since the numbers--we

might as well deal with this quite openly~~the numbers in

this dose assessment you now have before you, the final dose

assessments are somewhat higher than the ones contained in

the preliminary dose assessment that formed the basis of the

earlier estimates made by Dr. Bender and Dr. Brill.

Mr. YATES. But they concluded nevertheless that, even

though they are higher, they nevertheless are small, and

therefore, should not affect them. Is that a correct

conclusion?

Dr. BERGMAN. That is correct.

Dr. BENDER. Yes sir.

Mr. YATES. What about the rate of increase? You

indicated that on the basis of the two studies, the later

study showed a higher incidence, if I understood what Mr.

Mitchell is saying. If that is true, is there a rate that

might affect them if they return?

Dr. BENDER. No. The doge assessments have been revised,

generally upwards. In the order of 20 percent. In a

general way the effects about whch we are concerned are &  
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linear function of accumulated doses, say 30 years or 590

percent. So it is inevitable that the health effects

estimate matter will increase as dose increases. That does

not mean that the risk per unit dose is any different, nor

that there will be greater risks in future years as a result

of some accumulations of doses. We have accounted for that.

In fact, the risk later on, after about eight years in the

case of Enjebi, whether we start having locally grown

coconuts and things available, will start to decline.

Mr. YATES. Really?

Dr. BENDER. And the risks will decline with each

succeeding generation, generally.

Mr. YATES. The soil is clear then, and coconutS grown on

that land will not have the same effects as the coconuts-~

where was that? Bikini, yes. Are you familiar with Bikini?

Dr. BENDER. Yes, to an extent.

Mr. YATES. Yes, well we took them off the Bikinis because

they were eating the coconuts. I guess they had a higher

incidence of possible cancer producing agents than is

present at Enewetak or Enjebi.

Dr. BENDER. The Bikxini people, as I understand the

situation, some of them were moved back,, and did indeed eat

a lot of coconuts, and were found indeed to have higher body

burdens than had been anticipated, when it was anticipated

they would not be eating so many coconuts.  
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The present final reassessment of potential radiological

doses for Enewetak is based on several things. It is based

on soil radio nuclid measurements. It is based on knowledge

about the uptake of those radio nuclids from the soil into

things like coconuts. And it is based on the diet that we

believe the people of Enewetak will follow. It is given in

fact in terms of availability to outside foods and

nonavailability of outside foods. So these factors are

taken care of in the dose assessment here, I believe.

Mr. YATES. What would be the requirement for outside

foods? Will they have to be----

Mr. MITCHELL. The preferred diet of the Enewetak people--

Mr. YATES. Is it indigenous, or will it have to be

imported?

Mr. MITCHELL. As it now stands, based on a survey taken a

little while back, the dietary survey, the figures in this

dose assessment, they prefer to eat 60 percent imported

foods, 40 percent local.

Mr. YATES. What food will they have locally?

Mr. MITCHELL. Coconut, bread fruit, bananas. Taro is not

available. The islands just won't sustain them.

Dr. BENDER. Pork, chicken, seafood.

Mr. YATES. They have that. Small farms?

Mr. MITCHELL. Well, pigs and chickens, back yard farming.

Mr. YATES. What did they do before the bombs, and before  
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the war, as far as their food?

Mr. MITCHELL. Before the war the islandswere in much

better shape.

Mr. YATES. I am sure they were, but what did they eat?

Mr. MITCHELL. The same thing.

Mr. YATES. They didn't import did they?

Mr. MITCHELL. Hertos John will be the expert witness on

that.

Mr. SILK. Before war, what kind of diet did they observe?

(Mr. Silk is interpreting for Hertes John)

Mr. SILK. Before the war, we used to eat pork,.chickens.

Mr. YATES. The same thing they eat now?

Mr. SILK. Fish, taro, banana, bread fruit, lime. Those

are the things----

Mr. YATES. Are those still present on Enewetak?

Mr. SILK. No.

Mr. YATES. They are not?

Dr. BENDER. But they will be. They have been planted on

Enewetak and other islands. They have not yet, I believe,

be replanted on Enjebi.

Mr. MITCHELL. I was at Enewetak the middle of the month.

The houses are beautiful. The. coconut trees are about knee

high. Bread fruit trees, most of them were blown away in a

storm a few weeks ago. It looks like a newly completed

housing project in Scottsdale, Arizona. It is desolated.  
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The long ranging agricultural program, which is a mattter

before you as fart of the Administration request, is

something that is a very, rather prosaic, but vital part of

the follow-on, is also something we support. But this kind

of thing, as I implied in the question is what really is

needed to restore Enewetak to its original conditions so it

cold support the people at a reasonable standard of living.

Mr. MURTHA. Will they ever become self-sufficient in

food?

Mr. YATES. As they were before?

Mr. MITCHELL. They will always probably need toimport

some food. But self-sufficiency for that atoll, development

of an economy for that atoll, is the prime objective of

these people now.

We have been talking to the Solar Power Corporation, a

subsidiary of Exxon to develop a solar power program for the

island. We are tapping all the businessmen we Know or can

find to put together a kind of round table to begin coming

up with ideas for exploitation of the marine resources. The

boat which you appropriated last year will help in that

regard. Ultimately, this will be the test of whether the

whole effort is successful. s

Mr. YATES. Maybe you ought to ask the psychiatrist

whether that is good or bad.

Is it good?  
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Go ahead, Mr. Murtha.

Mr. MURTHA. How many more people today, than say before

the war?

Mr. MITCHELL. Just before Christmas, 1947, when they were

136. Now we need a current census. We have been using the

number 550, but Hertes, the Magistrate, tells me he thinks

it is about 770. It has been a while since there was an

accurate census.

Mr. YATES. So you have got an island now that once

supported 136 people, now it will be required to support

over 600?

Mx. MITCHELL. The tastes of the people have changed, too.

Even in those remote islands.

Mr. YATES. Now they want television?

Mr. MITCHELL. Well, I haven't heard that yet. But they

want outboard motors so they can go chase the tuna.

Mr. YATES. The reason I asked Dr. Bergman the question

was, I had seen a television program, and of course Margaret

Mead’s anthropological studies always raised the questions

about the return to the homes, and what impact of western

culture is likely to bring upon them. They will be going

home to their islands, we hope. Will the advent and

introduction of private enterprise change their culture to

the extent where they no longer have the same kind of

cultural relationships they had before?  
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Dr. BENDER. I think the crucial think about social change

is how it occurs. Particularly whether it is something that

comes from within the culture, as evolutionary change,

something that makes sense to them and that they want, oz

whethe it comes as a big shock. There is evidence that

cultural change among any of us hsa certian effects on

health. There is a lot of evidence also that forced

cultural change and destruction of the cultuze has much more

severe health effects.

Mr. YATES. Do they want the introduction of Mr

Mitchell's clients, like Exxon?

Mr. MITCHELL. Exxon is not my client. We are trying to

exploit them.

Mr. YATES. Allright, exploitees;: then.

Mr. MITCHELL. It is imperative that whatever business or

economic enterprises are developed, are developed with the

full participation, and ultimately, based upon the decisions

of the people themselves. We are not looking for

businessmen driven by a profit incentive as much as we are

altruism.

Mr. YATES. I know that. But altruism soemtimes had

deleterious effects.

Mr. MITCHELL. It could Endeed. We are acutely aware of

that. :

Mz. YATES. Right. They go home--I don't remember, I  
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should I think, but I don’t remember what the social

structure will be like when they get home. Do they have

community ownership of the property again? How do they

allocatge the resources of the community? How does each one

receive a proportion? Have they agreed to this kind of an

approach yet? Will they go back to their ancestral holding

and cultures, or how will it take place?

Mr. MITCHELL. I can asnsuer that in part. And all of the

people--there are now 100 people who have returned to

Ujelang. But every;body has resettled to Enewetak, the

southern islands of the atoll. Enjebi is yet to be decided.

Everybody decided to go back on an experimental basis to

see whether they could survive and function there, starting

about last September, late last fall. All but 100 are still

living there now on the islands of Enewetak, Majuzo and

Enjebi.

During the planning for the rehabilitation program, the

planning council selected by the people themselves went

back, actually marched up and down the islands and

reestablished all the traditional parcels--latos--out to the

lagoon and sea. All those were reestablished. The land

rights associated therewith were in fact reestablished
a+
+

through that process.
.

Mr. YATES. Without complaint from anybody?

Mr. MITCHELL. There were differences. At times there  
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were sharp differences. They have all been settled amicably

among the group itself. They were left entirely to do that

sort of thing. I wasn't involved. We didn't let anybody

else be involved, we left them alone to do it themselves.

In terms of--these people have been isolated all these years.

Mr. YATES. Answer my question. What happens to the

products of the soil here, ox to the food?

Mr. MITCHELL. I think we better turn to Hertos John for

that.

Mr. YATES. Hertos, what happens now? Suppose you go

back, suppose they go back to the islands. How do they

distribute all of the food, how do they distribue the land,

how do they distribute the leadership, the ownership? Tell

us about the culture.

Mr. SILK. Before we return, we have a planning council--

committee--to take care of that. We try to work it out as

best we could, try to redistribute the lands according to

what we know before we left Enewetak.

Mr. YATES. The lands have been taken care of. What about

Gistribution of food.

Mr. SILK. Distribution of food is not--we haven't decided

on that. *

Mr. YATES. fI know, but if you go back, there are going to

be imports of food that hasn't been grown. You now have

over 500 or 600 people, where previously you had 136. The  
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land was distributed on the original 136, or was it

@Gistributed to the 500 and some? How was the land

distributed?

Mr. SILK. We are distributing the land according to the

lineage system.

Mr. YATES. I don't know what that means.

Mr. SILK. It means according to your family, coming from

your mother's side.

Mr. YATES. Do the descendants of the mother's own the

land now?

Mr. SILK. The land is decided two ways. You get your

land rights from your mother's and also from your father's.

Mr. YATES. That is Kind of a double lineage system, then.

But the thing I am wondering about is, is there an overflow

of people here who don't own anything?

Mr. SILK. No, they will still have land.

Mr. YATES. I don't understand that. Unless all the land-

Mr. MITCHELL. Can you just explain based on what you

understand? John Silk is with our office in Majuro and also

served as translater. I think he may be able to provide the

answer. What increasing population, how do they continue to

allocate land so everybody gets some, that is the question.

Mr. YATES. I£ they do, if in fact they do, because what

happens to the product of the soil? Presumably if he owns a  
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plot of land and plants his food there, how does the person

who doesn't own land get fed?

Mr. SILK. To answer the question, according to what I

Know about land distribution, I haven't heard of any Majuro

who doesn't have land right in the Marshall Islands.

Mr. YATES. They all have a land right?

Mr. SILK. All the families have a land right.

Mr. YATES. Some own more land than others?

Mx. SILK. That could be true, yes. But there is no one

person that you can say owns a piece of property, because

the land rights are within the family unit, the group. It

is not parcelled out to individuals.

Mr. YATES. Are there any people who wouldn't have some

interest in some island somewhere? Apparently not.

Mr. SILK. It could be that there will be some people who

have land rights on one island but don't have it on the

other island. But that doesn't mean they don't have any

land rights at all.

Mz. YATES. Okay. Well, how are they going to get fed?

Mr. SILK. Either they will get their food from the

parcels of land that their families have or---- |

Mr. YATES. Imported?

Mr. SILK. Imported.

Mr. YATES. tou will the imported food be distributed?

Mx. MITCHELL. That is a current question. They are doing  
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that now. How is it done?

Mr. SILK. We distribute that according to the population,

how many people are there.

Mr. YATES. Equal shares?

Mr. SILK. Equal shares.

Mr. YATES. Okay. So there is no trouble in paradise,

right?

Mr. SILK. There could always be trouble.

(Laughter)

Mr. SILK. But we try to do our best to try to distribute

equally.

Mr. YATES. All right. Do they have any trouble? Okay,

what are the troubles?

Mr. SILK. Well, like now, there are a number of our group

who are not on Enewetak. They are on the other islands,

Marshall Islands. And they want to get a share. As it is

right now, the standing is that we divided the food among

the people who are actually living on that island. So there

is another problen.

Mr. YATES. How is that going to be solved?

Mr. SILK. Those people will have the food we give then,

and there won't be any problem.

Mr. YATES. Do they know the results of the reports, does

the chief know the results of the reports we have showing

what the incidence is and so forth? Are they aware that  
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there is a possible danger? The doctors aren't willing to

say there is no possible danger, are you?

Dr. BENDER. We are not. We have tried to explain to them

the risks as we see them. I believe they understand then.

Mr. MITCHELL. In September 1979, the Department of Energy

and Department of Interior representatives, as well as Dr.

Bender and Dr. Brill and the rest of us, went to Ujelang

where the people were staying. I wish we had had more time.

The Department of the Interior was anxious to get the boat

back again. Department of Energy made a lengthy

presentation. We met with Bender and Brill and another

doctor. We evalauted the dose assessment. People

consdiered the risk estimates which were before us then,

which as you now know, are just slightly less than what you

are now looking at.

The people weighed that in with all the other

considerations important to them. The restricted land base,

the need for everyone to inhabit where they traditionally

belong. They decided it was resettlable. They asked us to

come here and ask for the funds to do that.

Mr. YATES. How much money is needed?

Mz. MITCHELL. The unofficial Interior estimate, I think,
Po

as $6 million.  
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Mr. YATES. How do we resettle them if the Secretary of

the Interior says they shouldn't be resettled, which is the

condition at the present time?

Mr. MITCHELL. You are referring to the early January

letter?

Mr. YATES. The letter of January 5th by the Deputy Under

Secretary, who says, Cecil Andrus, said the Secretary of

Interior determined that radiation exposure falls below

Federal standards.

Further, the Secretary believes the most acceptable way to

ensure the people of Enjebi to return to their homeland in

the future would be for the establishment of a housing trust

fund to be used only when Enjebi Island was deemed safe for

habitation.

Well, the doctors are deeming it safe. What about the

Department of Interior, are they deeming it safe?

Mr. MITCHELL. That is the old Department of Interior.

We have called upon them to reconsider.

Mr. YATES. Well, Mx. Bettenberg represents the new

Department of Interior. He used to represent the old one;

now he represents the new one.

Mz. MITCHELL. Just so #4t is clear, we have written and

called upon the new Department of Interior to reconsider

this. They have said they will do this.

Mr. YATES. Who is ‘‘'they?''®  
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16354 Mr. MITCHELL. In this case, it is either Billy Lee Hart,

1635/ oz one of the undexr secretaries. I can provide a copy of

1636! the letter for the record.

1637 {The information follows: }

1638

1639 EXRKEEEKKE COMMITTEE INSERT *¥*5U2U%%%

  



NAME:

1640

1641

1642

1643

1644

1645

1646

1647

1648

1649

1650

1651

1652

1653

1354

1655

1656

1657

1658

1659

1660

1661

1662

1663

1664  

HAP 133080 PAGE 71

Mr. YATES. Who from Interior wants to comment on that?

Mr. BETTENBERG. I frankly can't.

Mr. YATES. How about Mr. deYoung?

Mr. DEYOUNG. I would be happy to.

Mr. YATES. What is your title, Mr. deYoung?

Mr. DEYOUNG. Senior Assistant for Office of Territorial

and International Affairs. I would be happy to comment on

that.

Mx. Mitchell is correct. On behalf of the people of

Enewetak, he has submitted a letter to Secretary Watt,

requesting the Secretary to re-examine Secretary Andrus‘

decision.

This issue is before the new Administration and will be

reviewed.

Mr. YATES. When was that done? When did you give

Secretary Watt the new letter?

Mr. DEYOUNG. I would say probably about two’ weeks ago.

But it is pending. It will be looked at.

Mr. YATES. What is your feeling, personally, about what

the findings of the doctors are, and what about your

advisors?

Where is the gentleman from DOE?

Mr. DEYOUNG. We ~have the DOE contingent in the rear of

the room.

Mr. YATES. There is no hiding place in here, you know.  
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Mx. MITCHELL. Mx. Chairman, I might sharpen the issue a

bit by suggesting a question. The letter here says that the

radiation standards are not complied with. I would assert,

shall now assert. |

Mr. YATES. ‘"Y do now assert.''

Mr. MITCHELL. I do now assert that the dosages you are

looking at in this final report are within the radiation

protection guides, the most stringent government criteria.

Mr. YATES. Mr. deYoung, having heard your assertion,

wants to reply.

Mr. DEYOUNG. I would like to remind the committee, as

well as Mr. Mitchell--

Mr. YATES. XY don't like the way this begins.

Mr. MITCHELL. I am used to it.

Mz. DEYOUNG. That when the Armed Services committee
cunt] brbrye a

originally [appropriated] money for the start of the clean-up,

at. ‘ aot

the» directed and ordered that there should be no | te

ALeowninlate Bin OF faealian

resettlement in Enewetak Atoll, unless the\eems set by the

ofAEC be followed.

Because of uncertainties, the EPA at that time recommended

hidusttd Att, anWer, tam rmtid. ¢ Me. pha, le

that xhe 500-rem level\ee (cut in half, to 250. We were

disetfey “ir . a

exdered not to do any resettlement unless \=t—wees 250¢ae

aa

Mr. Mitchell is perfectly aware of this. All of the

Enewetak resettlement program has been on the basis of 250

SeciZ:al

rem. This is not ajstandard.  
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This was a recommendation we were directed to follow.

Mr. YATES. I know. The fact Mr. Mitchell is aware of

that doesn't mean it is right.

_, fr. DEYOUNG. I know. What I am saying is that the
Aral: vi yt ae

J rehabilitation program that was carried out was eereeod.out

under a directive from a committee of the U.S. Congress.

Mr. YATES. Which committee?
Abate

Mx. DEYOUNG. ThejArmed Services committee.

Mr. YATES. When?
ava Bid

Mr. DEYOUNG. That ferrroprieted| the original money for

the clean-up program.

Mr. YATES. Mr. Mahoney's committee? Was this

appropriations, or Armed Services committee?
: “aoa CeO rt . yf wae ee

Mr. DEYOUNG. A Armed Services, /4:°:-+5°°* | a
a Lae ft OF at eo KS, wifes: fo te 7 ie dd fe

Mr. YATES. They can’t appropriate. They recommend.

Okay.

How realistic is the 250% 903-/

Mr. DEYOUNG. It is met in the southern islands. There

is no problem at all.

Mr. YATES. That is fine. Does the Secretary's directive

apply to the southern islands as well?

Mr. DEYOUNG. That's correct.

Mr. YATES. Then the Secretary's letter won’t let them go

back tc the southern islands, will it?

Nr. DEYOUNG. No, I am saying the southern islands are  
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way below\250, ccucl.

Mr. YATES.

agree with that?

Mr.

islands.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

DEYOUNG.

YATES.

DEYOUNG.

YATES.

MITCHELL.

They are already there. Does the Secretary

Yes, there is no problem with the southern

Just the northern islands?

Just the northern islands and Enjebi.

Deo we have a map?

The eastern chain. Then you come to

Enjebi near the top.

Mr.

Mr.

YATES.

MITCHELL.

Enjebi is right at the north.

That is right. That is where about half

the people once lived.

Mr. YATES. And they want to go back there. What about

the other small islands? Were they never occupied?

Mr. MITCHELL. They were always available for copra

production and gathering of food.

Mr. YATES. Will they be available? Oh, that is where

they deposited everything, isn't it? Yes, I remember now.

It's been a year.

I hadn't really remembered it so well. I see Runet, named

aiter Yvonne.

Mr. MITCHELL.

‘.
ea

That-was the English name for the islands.

The applicable radiation guide--~

Mr. YATES. Is the only dispute left Enjebi?  
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Mr. MITCHELL. That’s it. Enjebi has two numbers in it.

Annual rate, and a 30-year dose.

Mr. YATES. How far above 250 are you in Enjebi?

Mr. MITCHELL. 250 is the wrong number with all due

respect. It is 500.

Mr. YATES. 250 is the number Mr. deYoung used.

Mr. MITCHELL. Mr. deYoung respectfully is mistaken. The

DOE people will agree he is mistaken. The applicable number

is 500 millirem. On an annual basis.

In 30 years, which is the dose of relevance to genetic

effects, five rem, or 5000 millirem, is the guide, not the

limit, not the limit, but the guide.

The limits you see for dose, page 8 of our statement, 226

mMillirem is the dose our doctors tell us is relevant on an

annual basis.

So 226 as against a standard of 500 millizem. For the 30-

year dose, we are 1.8 above the five, above the standards

themselves, radiation protection guidance, expressly

permits, where justified, a dose at a rate higher than five

in 30 years, if there is a good reason for doing so.

The 1.8 difference between the five rem, and the 6.8 which

is the prediction, is a matter I would like our doctors to

enx

comment upon.

They say it is not a dangerous thing by any means. And I

would challenge the DOE to say otherwise.  
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Mr. YATES. A question I should like to ask is, suppose

there were no remnants, relics of the bomb blasts. What

would be the rems that would be applicable just in a sunlit

island like that, much lower than the consequences as a

result--

Dr. BRILL. 3.5 microrads per hour or an annual dose of

30.7 millirem per year, as opposed to Denver, which is 140.3

millirem. 140 versus 30.

Mr. YATES. Because Denver is higher?

Dr. BRILL. Higher, and also because of the naturally

occuring radioactive materials on the Colorado Plateau.

Dr. BENDER. Also because they are closer to the equator,

which influences the cosmic rate. .

Dr. BRILL. A fourth, or one-£ifth.

Dr. BENDER. As we pointed out in the 1979 document, the

kinds of doses we are talking about for the people of

Enjebi, should they return, certainly the people of Enewetak

as they have returned, are in the general range of exposures

that people around the world take voluntarily, and nobody is

the least bit concerned.

That is to say, people choose to live in Denver, and

nobody says, ‘*Well, that is dangerous, and we have to move

them away.''

Elsewhere in the world, there are some rather high

yadiation background areas, in Brazil and India, where  
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people live and receive doses far in excess of any being

considered here.

That, of course, is not to consider cases of occupational

exposure which we allow. So this is not an unusual

situation.

Mr. YATES. Is there a question here of ‘hold

harmless''?

Mz. MITCHELL. That is raised now and then and I always

feel a little uncomfortable when it is, because I don't

think legally the Enewetak people could release the U.S.

Government in any case from some future harm which could

occur.

On the other hand, based on everything we Know, we don’t

foresee anything of that sort anyway.

Mr. YATES. That's probably the reason you got the letter

from the Secretary, because there wasn't a ‘‘hold~-harmless''

provision.

Mr. MITCHELL. I think the problem is two-fold. They are

fearful of adverse publicity. They are fearful more so this

day with lawyers chasing ell over the islands, talking about

suing for millions and millions of dollars, and they are

even more afraid of adverse publicity from lawsuits.

It makes our job even more difficult.

Mr. YATES. Let's hear from DOE now. Mr. Deal, wherever

you are.  
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DR,
I Know there is fer. Wachhols, but Mr. Deal is bigger than

Dr. Wachholc.

Come on up, Mr. Deal, Dr. Wachholz2 and Dr. Burr.

What is your feeling about all this? You have heard the

testimony by witnesses, Mr. Mitchell and the witnesses with

him. Mr. Deal has been answering questions in the past. not

too satisfactorily, but answering them nevertheless.

What is your feeling about this now, Mr. Deal?

Mr. DEAL. Since I can start, I can turn to my--

Mr. YATES. Sure, of course you can.

(Laughter.)

Mr. DEAL. Mr. Chairman, I have heard a lot of things

that bring back old history to uS. es—you-maey—tocait.

F—wiid—ashk—teor—a—chance—_tocorrect-histeory—if—i—aake—a

mistake.—_misstatement—in—my—comments.-—But—I think -that

WAS CONSIFEK ES WEEN
everything Mr. Mitchell has said about the standards, we~

have—+o—zremembese—thaet the Atomic Energy Commission spent a

lot of time reviewing the clean-up criteria for Enewetak.
THESE DISCUSSIONS BRO FO T OF) PAPERS REE

Z—thinh All of that—hes—been a matter of record, before:
= 4 THE (hI TAL ASSIOMAIMTS Wek

When-i-+—ias—submi-ttod, the—arrangements, that the Department
o "pre

W2r Tre KHTepic Fut aco

THe CoA SsOw
of Defense would do the clean-up operations, and we would

Rab Cr ptiey THE CLE AWUP, A

establish the criteria, The five commissioners themselves
a

considered this in great detail.

It took several years to put this all together. The
USED fA THE CEE Ree CRITERIA PuBLISe Eb

numbers, tart were used, ali thet—se—Teid-outas a matter of  
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record in the EIS.

So there is nothing new here in terms of what we could say
iS PS €00)

to you on that. The reasoning behind it sw today as it was

TL ALS THY CRITE ECR De A
zn—$hat—tom. Wenterrte-t—to take a conservative approach.

TeKa7 Ries, eeeLK CLEC

It is unfortunate that the numbeve.e dosesare so close

°

that there is no clear-cut yes or no. That is all I can

Say. To comment on interpreting these standards w@t% is

really a responsibility of EPA.

THE Aauvtepp re oF

They have received, the Federal Radiation Council, which

was the body established to promulgate radiation standards

for the government.

That is their responsibility. They have the ;

EPA CONCUR (WV THE FEL
interpretation of these. Ffhey did egree earitet enour

AND TO CLEANUP CRITERIA THAT WERE EPA
approach, toythe standard&- We had letters from thet

On. NFOR THE DOD CugAnuP PROGRAM,
this.

Mx. YATES. Did Interior consult EPA on this at all?

Mr. DEYOUNG. Yes.

Mr. YATES. Did you consult EPA before the Secretary sent

his letter out in January?

Mr. DEYOUNG. EPA has been involved in various meetings

and has testified before this committee.

Mr. YATES. What is the attitude of EPA in this, does it

have one? :

Mr. DEYOUNG. EPA has said the Federal standards should

apply. They do apply.  
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Mr. MITCHELL. Excuse me. The EPA has also said, and

somewhere in everybody's files, the letters are there, these

numbers I mentioned before, 500 millirem per year, 5 ren in

30 years, are not absolute ceilings.

They have to be applied with judgment.

Mr. YATES. I think the best thing to do is bring EPA in

and ask them. We did that in July. but this is a year

later.

We have anew EPA. Maybe the new EPA will come to a

different conclusion. I don't know. Do you want to express

an opinion as to whether or not these people ought to go

back to Enjebi? You would rather not do it.

Dr. Wachholz, would you like to express an opinion?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. If I had an option, I would prefer not to.

(Laughter. )

Mr. YATES. Suppose you sat where Dr. Brill sits and Dr.

Bender and the others.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. May I comment on some of the previous

testimony?

Mr. YATES. Sure you may.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. We received a copy of their testimony

during the lunch hour, so I have not had an opportunity to

look at it other than,superficial/} Glance through it.

Just from what they said, I don't think we have any

significant disagreement in terms of the actual risk  
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involved.

I think part of the question is, will the decision be

based upon the doses which are estimated and projecteafor

upon the potential risk that is involved?
WHAT IS AM HecPrTo srs

Clearly, there is no standard for risk, out werisk is

obviously a very personal thing.

What is acceptable to you may not be acceptable to me; and

vice versa.

Mz. YATES. I know.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. In terms of standards. there is a Federal

FoR THE Mayimum Exeosry i oiviper,
standard of 500 millirem per year, In this very superficial

look at the table they have here, they have taken the 30-

year accumulated dose and divided by 30 to get an annual

average.

Correct me if I am incorrect.

Dr. BENDER. Absolutely right.

SerENnrisTS
Dr. WACHHOLZ. On the other hand, our laboratory peepre

have gone through the dose which people are likely to

receive on a year-by-year basis.

In some years, it is much lower than this; in some years,

it is considerably higher than this. I think, and I am

projecting in an area that we really don't have

responsibility for since we are essentially in the dose

.

prediction business--

Mz. YATES. Would you expect the earlier years to have  
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the highest dose, or later ones?

MEITHER.-
Dr. WACHHOLZ. we. In fact, I would suspect the peak

years to be after the food plants and crops and coconut

trees begin maturing, which I assume would be six, eight, 10

years or longer.

Mr. YATES. Why would you expect that if, in fact, the

earth is clear and there won't be transmission through the

coconuts and the other foods?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. I don't think anyone has indicated that

there would be no transmission, because, in fact, the soil

is not totally free of radionuclides. No, sir. I don't

think anyone--

Mz. YATES. I had the wrong impression, then.

Dr. BENDER. Perhaps I can clarify that. If we gave you

that impression, we didn't intend to. Clearly, everyone

agrees there is radioactivity present. And that when the

trees are planted, or other things, it will get into them.

Mr. YATES. Yes.

Dr. BENDER. The amount of radionuclides will decrease

with increasing time simply because, by decay--

Mr. YATES. You two are in disagreement?

Dr. BENDER. No, we are not.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. 1 don't think so. I think it is a little

bit of apples and oranges. In tezms of radioactive decay of

the radionuclides, this is a physical constant.  
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1940 Clearly., uhet—is there now, Suet—in—termscl60ne—e8the

1941| xodiemretitess (half will be thene’30 years iron nou,

1942 Dr. BENDER. Yes.

1943 Dr. WACHHOLZ. But I think what I said is that because of

1944| the maturation of food crops in eight or 10 years, the

1945| people will have access to and ingest foods containing

1946| higher quantities of radionuclides than would be the case

1947) immediately, when all of their food presumably would be

1948) imported from outside.

1949 Dr. BENDER. May I call the Chairman's attention to Table

1950/ 29 of the new Livermore dose reassessment?

1951 This is page 50 and 51. This gives for various scenarios

1952; and locations, and for bone marrow and whole body and so

1953| forth, the dose estimates for the maximum year, and the year

1954; an which the maximum is estimated to occur. |

1955 As Dr. Wachholz has said, the reason it is nine or 10

1956| years in the future for Enjebi, which you will note it is

1957/ not for some of the southern islands, is simply that, if we

1958) plant coconut trees now, no coconuts will be mature or eaten

1959| for perhaps eight years.

1960 It is those coconuts which will contain the greatest

1961/ amount of radionuclides. Coconuts maturing thereafter will

1962! presumably contain decreasing’ amounts, according, mainly, to

19631 the half-life of the isotope involved.

1964  But this has all been taken into consideration.  
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Mr. YATES. Under Enjebi, you are up to 500.

Dr. BENDER. In the maximum year, yes, sir, but not

substantially above it. I think that is an important point.

In the minimum years out of these 30, it will he very:

substantially less.

Mr. MITCHELL. In any case, part of the assumption is

that the island will receive reasonable support from the

outside world, so the diet, 60 percent imported foods, 40

percent local, can be maintained.

Mr. YATES. What is reasonable support?

Mr. MITCHELL. Well, it means a field trip vessel. I

would say every couple of months. John, what would you say?

How often should a field trip vessel call upon the island

in order for them to maintain the diet that they prefer?

Once a month.

Mr. YATES. Okay, Dr. Wachholz. I stopped you in

midflight. Go ahead.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. I am not sure where the flight was at the

moment.

Mr. YATES. I think you were talking about the peaking.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. I was saying we have a Federal standard

for the dose, but we don't for risk. In terms of what is
a>mt

applicable and what is not, we would defer to the
a

Environmental Protection Agency as to how the doses that we

have calculated compare with those standards.  
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We have put in these books, the ones we presented to the

Enewetak and Bikini peoples in the last two years, the

number 500, so that they are aware of the fact that there is

em not only, U.S.,butan’ international standard that is

acceptable.

In terms of any variance from that, in-—terms—otf-heowthts

palates.to -their—situation_and-se—onmwe would defer to the

EPA.

Mr. MURTRA. What if you didn’t eat the coconuts, what if

they didn't plant coconuts now? How much less would the

radiation level be, say they plant them 10 years from now?

Dr. WACHHOLZ. If I can break your question into two

parts, start with they don't plant coconuts, period.

First of all, I don't know how realistic that is, and I am

not in a position to make a comment on that.

Secondly, certainly the dose would be less to some extent,

and I would just be guessing if I mentioned a specific

number.

Mr. MURTHA. But you said at .a peak period the coconuts

were going to be one of the major reasons that you would

have this.

Dr. WACHHOLZ. Right.

Mr. MITCHELL. Mr. Murtha--

Mr. YATES. Well, wait a minute. Is there something the

Doctor said you don't agree with?  
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Dr. BENDER. It might have been misleading. It seems

clear, if you don't plant the coconuts, then you will not

receive any of the dose attributable to eating coconuts in

the future.

If you plant them later, when they mature, there will be

less radioactivities.

Mr. YATES. What is Paradise without coconuts? You are

going to have to plant them, aren't you?

Dr. BENDER. We have suggested in conferences with the

then Under Secretary of Interior, Mr. Green--

Mr. YATES. We had our experience with Bikini... where they

were told not to eat the coconuts. And, apparently,

coconuts are like candy to kids to the people out there.

Coconuts is one of their staples, and they will eat it.

Dr. BENDER. I can't comment too much on Bikini except to

say that my understanding is that the reason so many

coconuts were eaten is basically the failure of supply, and

not just a matter of a few weeks, but a matter of many

months.

Mr. YATES. I think that was present there, too, yes.

Dr. BENDER. We suggested to Mr. Green at one point, I

think it was Mr. Green, the possibility of building houses

at Enjebi, and plantingthe coconuts, and agreeing that the

trees would be removed and replanted if it turned out in

eight years, or whenever the appropriate time is, that they  
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were, in fact, too radioactive to allow the guides to be

met.

I think that the people's representatives agreed to that

at that meeting. .

Mr. MURTHA. How much less radiation would there be if

they didn't eat the coconuts?

Dr. BRILL. It is a factor of two. IE you look at the

table you just were looking at, Table 29, on page 50, and

you look at the doses for imports available and unavailable

for the same population group for Enjebi Janet, it is 509

whole body millirems per year in the year of the highest

does, if they eat native foods.

It is one-half of that, 277, if imports are available.

So, without the trees, you cut the dose by a factor of two.

Mr. MITCHELL. I think it is even less than that. I

think the dose with imported foods still includes

consumption of some local foods.

Let me just try this. Absent the food web problem, which

is what we are concerned with here, isn't it correct that

the dose from terrestrial sources is very small, is really

not a matter of any concern at all? Isn't that a fact?

Mr. YATES. I didn't he az that answer.

Mr. DEAL. It is very small. Cesium levels--

Mr. YATES. You better say that loudly so the reporter

can hear you.  
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Mr. DEAL. I am almost certain, Mr. Chairman, the

external dose levels would not bring you up to the standard.

It has to come from the food they eat to bring it up.

Dr. BENDER. In fact, sir, the local natural background

is low enough so that, if one accepts the external component

of dose as estimated in this dose reassessment, the sum of

the two is still less than, for example, living in Denver.

Mr. YATES. Well, we better get the expert from EPA in

and find out how EPA feels. And we better find out from the

Secretary's office how the Secretary feels before we do

anything on this thing.

I can sympathize with the desire of you people to go home.

But I must say, I dislike. as much as these gentlemen do,

giving an affirmative answer to what may result.

Is there anything else we ought to put into the record?

Mr. MITCHELL. No, X think we have everything, can submit

anything. Do we have any more time at all?

Mr. YATES. Did your witnesses want to say something?

Mr. MITCHELL. Are we winding up at this point?

Mr. YATES. I think so.

Di. BRILL. Could I make a comment about the risk

estimates? .

Mr. YATES. Sure you may, Doctor.

Dr. BRILL. Dr. Bender and I spent approximately two

years with the National Academy of Science's recent  
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reviewing of radiation effects, he from the genetic

standpoint, and I with the Somatics Committee.

Then the two of these committees got together to revise

and come to a consensus. |

Over the years, since the last BEIR Committee report ain

13972, the risk estimates have decreased by a factor of two

as a result of the recent reappraisal.

I would submit that perhaps the EPA and other groups that

looked at the radiation doses and potential consequences,

maybe three, four, five, 10 years ago when they planned the

resettlement and clean-up, were looking at a factor of two

higher in risk.

So they Might want to reconsider the risks associated with

the levels they have been able to achieve, which are much

lowe than they had anticipated.

The second thing is that the newest BEIR Committee, in its

reappraisal, developed two models, one which is the linear

model, which is the one all our high-risk estimates come

from, which was put forth as the upper limit on credible

risks; and a lower-risk model, the linear quadratic, which

falls in between the high and the low models, and also is

most consistent with radiobiological evidence.

So I think that was called the best estimates. I£ you

look at the situation fox the Enjebi population, the risk

estimates in terms of the numbers of added cancers  
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throughout the life span of the population, assuming they

can go back and are exposed to the doses that we both agree

upon, is between .15 and .99 added cases of cancer in the

lifetime of that population. |

That assumes that these people go back at birth, and

indeed, many of them are going back at ages considerably

above birth, although I wouldn’t want to guess their age.

So, therefore, the risk they would assume in their

lifespan is less than this. So you are talking about a

fraction of a case of cancer in the lifetime of the

population, against the other kinds of risks one would

quantify by their not going.

So far in the clean-ups, there have been three deaths.

One associated with the engineers, an aspect of moving dirt,

and two associated with water, in the lagoon.

People are exposed to risks. I think the radiation risk

here, when you are talking about a small fraction of a case,

maybe is one of the smallest considerations.

Mr. YATES. Will we know until 20 or 25 years go by?

Dr. BRILL. These risk estimates are based upon the

experience largely of the Japanese survivers we have

followed now for over 30 years. So they are rather stable

estimates. These are not those that a single committee has

come up with.

They happen to agree very well with the United Nations’  
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Committee meeting that involved representatives from all

over the world, and summarized their effects in '77.

I think we are in pretty good agreement on the levels of

risk. We are really talking about a fraction of a case.

Mr. YATES. Why is Mr. deYoung so stubborn? Why are you

so stubborn. Mr. deYoung?

Mr. DEYOUNG. I wouldn't say, Mr. Chairman, that I am

stubborn. What I am saying is that when this particular

aspect was delegated to Interior, we were given certain

guidelines to follow.

Now, as I said, we are perfectly prepared to have EPA look

Mr. YATES. All right. You are right. We better call

EPA in here and see what the guidelines are, so that Mr.

deYoung has a different guideline if, indeed, there will be

a different one established.

You want to give Dr. Bergman a chance.

Mr. YATES. Okay, Dr. Bergman, I am not going to

interpret your testimony without your having given it.

Dr. BERGMAN. I think I can say very briefly that I think

that there is risk in allowing the displaced population to

be displaced and to keep them displaced, particularly after

they have considered the factg: of their situation and

decided they want to go-back.

There is a lot of experience, a lot of it in this country,

that there is considerable morbidity and mortality from  
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people being forced out of their homes and having their

lives disrupted.

The longer it goes on, the worse it gets. Suicide rates,

accident rates and violence go very high with such

populations.

A number of people who have had experiences like that,

their death rates are very high, where the incidence of

Suicide among young people is many times the national and

world averages.

Those risks are associated with displacement. IZ think

that in the interests of reducing risk of cancer, genetic

defects to zero, the risks of some of these other effects

may be very high.

Mr. YATES. Did you quantify them?

Dr. BERGMAN. Very roughly on basis of comparison with

other populations and other situations. But there are

places in this country where similar experiences have

eccurred, and the rates of death by suicide and violence are

greater by a factor of five to 10 in the younger population,

which would mean that, if anything approaching that were to

happen here, it might mean in a population of 500, somewhere

on the order of five to 20 deaths.

Mr. YATES. So we are in trouble, then, aren't we? We

are in trouble because, unless EPA has a psychiatrist to

come in and comment on your statement, as well as Federal  



NAME:

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

21395

2196

2197

2198

2199

2200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

2211

2212

2213

2214  

HAP133080 PAGE 93

standards, we have to consider that factor as well, don't

we?

Dr. BERGMAN. I think it should be considered

Mr. MURTHA. Mr. Chaizrman.

Mr. YATES. Mr. Murtha.

Mr. MURTHA. Are we talking about experience? This is

actually what is happening in this population, or are we

talking about hypothesis?

Dr. BERGMAN. This is what has happened in other

populations with similar experiences.

Mr. MURTHA. Why wouldn't it be happening now if they had

been displaced--

Dr. BERGMAN. I think it is happening.

Mr. MURTHA. It is. But you have just not done a study

of it, is that accurate?

Dr. BERGMAN. That's right.

Mr. YATES. So we are in further trouble now. We do

have, staff reminds me, a letter dated August 23rd, 1979,

addressed to Mr. deYoung'’s boss. She is your boss, isn't

she, as I remember?

Mr. DEYOUNG. Yes.

Mr. YATES. That lettersays, ‘*Can the 1960 Federal

guides by exceeded?'" And the answer is '"‘Yes.''

The guide states the following: ‘'ryt is recommended that

the Federal agencies apply these radiation protection guides  
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with judgment and discretion to assure that reasonable

probability is achieved in the attainment of the desired

goal of protecting man from the undesirable effects of

radiation. |

‘'The guides may be exceeded only after the Federal agency

having jurisdiction over the matter has carefully considered

the reasons for doing so in light of the recommendations in

this paper.''

So it is up to Interior. EPA says, sure, we have guides.

It is up to you to decide whether or not the danger exists.

So it is now been kicked back to the Secretary, hasn't it?

So we Fave to get ahold of Mr. Watt. So that is the state

of the record.

Did anybody want to say anything else?

All right, we bid you God speed on your voyage home and

will try to do our best by your clients.

Mz. MITCHELL. Thank you very much.

Mr. YATES. We recognize the fact that they want to go

home, and I can appreciate that.

It is a very difficult decision. We will do our best.

Thank you very much.

Mr. MITCHELL. We will be happy to bring these people .

back again with staff, or whatever.

Mr. YATES. Well, we are grateful for your records. We

are grateful for the testimony they gave us.  
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We are grateful for ‘the psychiatry and the sociology that

must be a necessary part of this. We will see if EPA, or

the Secretary, has any comments upon the psychiatrist's

testimony.

Mr. MITCHELL. Thank you very, very much for taking so

much time with us.

(Whereupon, at 2:13 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.)
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